City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation An Arizona Nonprofit Corporation

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

Annual Financial Report For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015



(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

Annual Financial Report For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION	3
FINANCIAL SECTION	
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants	4
Management's Discussion and Analysis	6
Basic Financial Statements	
Entity-Wide Financial Statements Statement of Net Position Statement of Activities	9 10
Governmental Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet	11
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position	12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in	13
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	14
Notes to the Financial Statements	
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies	16
2. Investments	19
3. Sales Contracts Receivable	20
4. Notes Receivable	29
5. Refunded Obligations	29
6. Bonds Payable	29
7. Commercial Paper Notes Payable	48
8. Construction Commitments	49
9. Subsequent Events	49

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION

Board Members

Vacant President

Michael R. Davis Vice President

James H. Lundy Secretary/Treasurer

> Barbara Barone Director

> > Bruce Covill Director

City of Phoenix Administrative Staff

Ed Zuercher City Manager

Denise Olson Chief Financial Officer



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation City of Phoenix, Ariz on a Graft Thermine LLP 2398 E Camelback Road, Suite 600 Phoenix, AZ 85016-9004 T602,474,3400 F602,474,3421 www.GraftThornton.com

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation (the "Corporation"), a component unit of the City of Phoenix, Anizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Corporation's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Grent Thornton LLP U.S. member firma Figure Thombon International Ltd



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Corporation, a component unit of the City of Phoenix, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Phoenix as of June 30, 2015, and the results of its operations for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Required supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 8 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. This required supplementary information is the responsibility of management. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

GRANT THORNTON LLP

Phoenix, Arizona December 21, 2015

Grent Thomton LLP U.S. member firm of Grent Thomton International Ltd

Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation (the "Corporation"), a component unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the "City") we offer the readers of the Corporation's basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of financial activities of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Corporation is a blended component unit of the City of Phoenix. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Corporation's separate basic financial statements.

The Corporation's basic financial statements are comprised of the following three components:

- Entity-wide financial statements
- · Fund financial statements
- Notes to the financial statements

Entity-wide financial statements. The *entity-wide financial statements* are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Corporation's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements are presented on pages 9-10 of this report. Summarized versions of these statements are included in this MD&A.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Corporation's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference being reported as *net position*. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of changes in the Corporation's financial position.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Corporation's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, *regardless of the timing of related cash flows*. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods e.g., accounts payable. This is the full accrual method of accounting.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Corporation uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal activities. All of the funds of the Corporation are categorized as governmental funds. The fund financial statements are presented on pages 11-14 of this report.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. However, unlike the entity-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on *near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources*, as well as on *balances of spendable resources* available at the end of the fiscal year, which is the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the entity-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 16-49 of this report.

Condensed Financial Information and Analysis of Overall Financial Position

The following tables and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position for the Corporation as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015. The prior year's financial position and results are presented for comparative purposes.

Summary of net position (in thousands):

	2015	2014
Current assets	\$ 650,054	\$ 637,505
Long-term assets	4,567,300	4,960,185
Total assets	5,217,354	5,597,690
Deferred outflows of resources		
Current liabilities	639,649	796,720
Long-term liabilities	4,796,423	4,816,801
Total liabilities	5,436,072	5,613,521
Deferred inflows of resources		
Net position		
Restricted for debt service	134,790	134,709
Unrestricted	(353,508)	(150,540)
Total net position	\$ (218,718)	\$ (15,831)
Summary of changes in net position (in thousands):		
	2015	2014
Program revenues	\$ 540,103	\$ 254,760
Investment income	272	370
Payments from the City of Phoenix	94,502	22,048
Total revenues	634,877	277,178
Cost of sales	635,144	41,914
Interest on long-term debt	196,072	219,823
Other expenses	6,548	4,250
Total expenses	837,764	265,987
Changes in net position	\$ (202,887)	\$ 11,191

Total assets decreased by 6.8% in the current fiscal year from \$5.6 billion at June 30, 2014 to \$5.2 billion as of June 30, 2015. Total liabilities decreased by 3.2% in the current fiscal year from \$5.6 billion in fiscal year 2014 to \$5.4 billion in fiscal year 2015. The decrease in both assets and liabilities is primarily due to the debt service payments made during the year, three refundings, and the sales contracts receivable from the City of Phoenix that is reduced by an equal amount. The change in both program revenues and cost of sales is due to the completion of two projects and three refundings in fiscal year 2015. The increase in payments from the City of Phoenix is primarily due to monies received to pay off commercial notes payable. The net position of the Corporation decreased \$202.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

As noted earlier, the Corporation uses fund accounting to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The following table and analysis summarizes changes in fund balances by major fund (in thousands):

	Fur	Fund Balances		let Change in	Fund Balances		
	<u>Ju</u>	<u>July 1, 2014</u>		Fund Balances		<u>June 30, 2015</u>	
	-						
General	\$	40	\$	(26)	\$	14	
Debt Service		134,709		81		134,790	
Capital Projects		(281,124)		163,295		(117,829)	
Total	\$	(146,375)	\$	163,350	\$	16,975	

The General Fund accounts for trustee fees and other miscellaneous expenditures. The decrease in fund balance is due to a reversal of of prior year prepaid professional fee during fiscal year 2015. Fund balance for the rest of the general fund was essentially unchanged as the City provided financial resources to meet the expenditures of the fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts primarily for current year principal and interest debt service payments. The increase in fund balance is due to investment income earned on reserves during fiscal year 2015.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the investment and expenditure of monies used for capital acquisitions and construction. Fund balance increased by \$163.3 million, which was due to the net effect of monies received to pay off outstanding commercial paper notes payable and the addition of new commercial paper notes payable.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The Corporation records assets under construction or purchased with bond proceeds as assets held for sale to the City of Phoenix. Upon completion of the purchase and construction of the assets they are sold to the City. The Corporation does not record the completed assets on its financial statements, as the Corporation does not own any capital assets.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Corporation's bond payable decreased by \$107,710,000. This decrease was due to refundings and routine debt service payments. During fiscal year 2015, the Corporation issued three refunding bonds. The Corporation also issued a new revenue bond during fiscal year 2015.

During 2015, the Corporation paid \$175,000,000 of the remaining Water Revenue Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2012A and 2012B.

During 2015, the Corporation paid \$120,000,000 of the remaining Airport Commercial Program Notes, Series 2011A and 2011B and issued \$160,000,000 of Airport Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2014ABC (Airport CP). Outstanding Airport CP at June 30, 2015, was \$140,000,000 after the Corporation paid \$20,000,000. There is an additional \$60,000,000 in Airport Commercial Paper that is authorized.

Further detail pertaining to the Corporation's outstanding long-term debt is available in Note 6 on pages 29-48.

Economic Factors

There have been no changes in the Corporation's agreement with the City to receive payments for debt service requirements on outstanding debt. There have been no adverse changes in the City's financial position that would affect their ability to continue to make payments to the Corporation to fund payments on debt service.

Requests for Financial Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department, City of Phoenix, Calvin C. Goode Municipal Building, Ninth Floor, 251 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona, 85003.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015 (in thousands)

	Governmental Activities
ASSETS	
Current Assets	
Restricted Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents	\$ 426,276
Investments	31,780
Interest Receivable	4
Prepaid Items	14
Current Portion of Sales Contracts Receivable	191,980
Total Current Assets	650,054
Notes Receivable	837
Sales Contracts Receivable, Less Current Portion	4,445,135
Assets Held for Sale to the City of Phoenix	121,328
Total Assets	5,217,354
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources	
LIABILITIES	
Current Liabilities	
Accounts Payable	43
Advances from the City of Phoenix	6,570
Matured Bonds Payable	188,465
Interest Payable	112,591
Commercial Paper Notes Payable	140,000
Current Portion of Bonds Payable	191,980
Total Current Liabilities	639,649
Payable to the City of Phoenix	837
Bonds Payable, Less Current Portion	4,466,095
Unamortized Premium	329,491
Total Liabilities	5,436,072
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	_
NET POSITION	
Restricted for Debt Service	134,790
Unrestricted	(353,508)
Total Net Position	\$ (218,718)

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 (in thousands)

	 vernmental Activities
EXPENSES	
Cost of Sales	\$ 635,144
Interest on Long-Term Debt	196,072
Issuance Costs	4,072
Trustee Fees	51
Other	 2,425
Total Expenses	 837,764
PROGRAM REVENUES	
Sales Contracts Income	308,710
Sales Contracts Interest Income	230,851
Other Income	 542
Total Program Revenues	 540,103
Net Program Expenses	 (297,661)
GENERAL REVENUES	
Investment Income	272
Payments from the City of Phoenix	 94,502
Total General Revenues	 94,774
Change in Net Position	(202,887)
NET POSITION, JULY 1, 2014	 (15,831)
NET POSITION, JUNE 30, 2015	\$ (218,718)

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENT FUNDS

June 30, 2015 (in thousands)

	Ge	eneral	 Debt Service	Capital Projects	 Totals
ASSETS					
Cash and Securities with Fiscal Agents	\$	_	\$ 426,276	\$ —	\$ 426,276
Investments		—	9,566	22,214	31,780
Interest Receivable		—	4	—	4
Prepaid Items		14	 _	 	 14
Total Assets		14	 435,846	 22,214	 458,074
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES					
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources			 	 	
LIABILITIES					
Accounts Payable		_	_	43	43
Matured Bonds Payable		—	188,465	—	188,465
Interest Payable		—	112,591	_	112,591
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable			 	 140,000	 140,000
Total Liabilities			 301,056	 140,043	 441,099
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES					
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources			 	 	
FUND BALANCE					
Fund Balances					
Non-Spendable					
Prepaid Items		14	_	_	14
Spendable					
Restricted for Debt Service		—	134,790	—	134,790
Unassigned			 	 (117,829)	 (117,829)
Total Fund Balance	\$	14	\$ 134,790	\$ (117,829)	\$ 16,975

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

(in thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds balance sheet	\$ 16,975
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:	
Assets held for sale to the City of Phoenix are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.	121,328
Sales contracts and notes receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.	4,637,952
Advances from the City of Phoenix that are payments for long-term liabilities are not reported in the governmental funds.	(6,570)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.	(4,988,403)
Net position of governmental activities - statement of net position	\$ (218,718)

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

(in thousands)

	Genera	1	 Debt Service	 Capital Projects	 Totals
REVENUES					
Investment Income	\$	25	\$ 233	\$ 14	\$ 272
Payments from the City of Phoenix	2,4	152	419,314	295,000	716,766
Other		_	 542	 	 542
Total Revenues	2,4	177	 420,089	 295,014	 717,580
EXPENDITURES					
Debt Service					
Principal			188,465	—	188,465
Interest		—	227,471	—	227,471
Capital Outlay		—	—	131,719	131,719
Payments to the City of Phoenix		25	—	—	25
Issuance Costs			4,072	—	4,072
Trustee Fees		51		_	51
Letter of Credit and Other Miscellaneous Fees	2,4	27	 	 	 2,427
Total Expenditures	2,5	503	 420,008	 131,719	 554,230
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures		(26)	 81	 163,295	 163,350
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)					
Proceeds from Refunding Bonds			978,115	—	978,115
Premium on Bonds		—	156,308	—	156,308
Deposit to Refunding Escrow		_	 (1,134,423)	 	 (1,134,423)
Total Other Financing Sources		_	 	 	 —
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance		(26)	81	163,295	163,350
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2014		40	 134,709	 (281,124)	 (146,375)
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2015	\$	14	\$ 134,790	\$ (117,829)	\$ 16,975

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 (in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds	\$ 163,350
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:	
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, those costs are reported as assets held for sale to the City of Phoenix.	131,719
Payments from the City of Phoenix for principal debt service payments provide current financial resources to the governmental funds but reduce long-term receivables in the statement of net position.	(188,465)
Sales contracts income provides program revenue and cost of sales are an expense in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which the sales contracts income was less than the costs of sales. Cost of sales and sales contracts income are not reported in the governmental funds.	(326,432)
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the amount by which repayments and amounts refunded (\$1,119,965) exceeded additions (\$978,115).	141,850
Bond discounts and premiums are amortized in the statement of activities but do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.	(124,909)
Change in net position of governmental activities - statement of activities	\$ (202,887)



(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

The City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation (the "Corporation"), a component unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona (the "City"), was organized under the laws of the State of Arizona as a nonprofit corporation for the purpose of acquiring real estate and constructing or otherwise acquiring or equipping buildings, structures or improvements to be utilized by the City for the benefit, common good, and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. Upon dissolution, any remaining assets are to be distributed to the City. As a political subdivision, the Corporation is exempt from Federal income taxes and, accordingly, it has obtained an exemption from Arizona income taxes. The City performs and absorbs significantly all administrative functions and costs on behalf of the Corporation, including construction commitments.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as applied to government units. The following is a summary of the significant policies:

a. Reporting Entity

The Corporation is legally separate from the City, however, because its sole purpose is to finance and construct public facilities for the City, the Corporation's financial statements are included as a blended component unit of the City's reporting entity.

b. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements constitute the core of the financial section of the Corporation's Annual Financial Report. The basic financial statements include the entity-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements, and the accompanying notes to these financial statements.

The entity-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) report on the Corporation as a whole. All activities are reported in the entity-wide financial statements using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which includes long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The entity-wide financial statements focus more on the sustainability of the Corporation as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal year.

The government-wide statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources of the government (excluding fiduciary funds). It is displayed in a format of assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources equals net position, with the assets and liabilities shown in order of their relative liquidity. Net position is required to be displayed in three components: 1) Net investment in capital assets, 2) restricted and 3) unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets, are capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position is subject to constraints that are: 1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or regulations of other governments, or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. All net position not otherwise classified as restricted, are shown as unrestricted. Generally, the City would first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Commitments or assignments of net position imposed by the reporting government, whether by administrative policy or legislative actions of the reporting government, are not shown on the government-wide financial statements governmental fund financial statements are prepared on a current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Since the governmental fund financial statements are presented on a different basis than the entity-wide financial statements, reconciliation is provided immediately following each fund statement. These reconciliations explain the adjustments necessary to transform the financial statements into the entity-wide financial statements.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

c. Fund Accounting

The Corporation uses governmental funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. The Corporation's fund financial statements are prepared using fund accounting to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which includes assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and expenditures.

The Corporation considers the following funds to be major funds:

General Fund

The general fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. This fund receives various financial resources that are used to pay trustee fees and other miscellaneous expenses. Financial resources may be transferred to other funds as needed.

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of, the principal and interest payments on the Corporation's debt.

Capital Projects Fund

The capital projects fund is used to account for the investment and expenditure of financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities to be sold to the City. Funds in the capital projects fund can also be used for debt service payments.

d. Fund Balances

Fund balances are classified as Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned based on the extent to which the Corporation is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash.

Restricted - The fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors through debt covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other governments or it's imposed by law through enabling legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance or resolution) of the City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts. Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically commit funds separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue. Therefore, committed fund balance does not apply to the Corporation.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Assigned - Amounts in the assigned fund balance are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council or City Management, if applicable.

Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund, if applicable. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and does not have a specific purpose. In the governmental funds, other than the general fund, if expenditures incurred exceeded the amounts restricted, committed or assigned, the fund may report a negative fund balance.

Generally, the Corporation would first apply restricted resources and then assigned and unassigned resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which more than one classification of fund balance is available.

e. Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. Governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus whereby only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net fund balance.

The fund financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Fund balances are restricted for use in debt retirement or payment of related expenditures, as provided for in the bond documents.

f. Budget and Budgetary Accounting

Budgeting for the financial activities of the Corporation is performed at the City level, not at the component unit level. As such, no budgetary disclosures are presented.

g. Assets Held for Sale to the City of Phoenix

The Corporation's assets held for sale are comprised solely of construction in progress. Upon completion of the purchase and construction, the assets are sold to the City, and the Corporation records a sales contract receivable and program revenue from the City of Phoenix. Assets sold to the City are either capital assets of the City or used as contributions for City joint ventures. Additionally, assets held for sale are reduced by the cost of the asset sold and charged to cost of sales.

h. Advances from the City of Phoenix

Any principal debt service payments received from the City prior to the recording of the sales contract receivable are classified as advances from the City of Phoenix.

i. Long-Term Obligations

In the entity-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, in the period in which the bonds are issued. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

j. Deferred Inflows and Outflows

From time to time, the corporation issues refunding bonds, wherein the proceeds and additional resources are used to purchase securities guaranteed by the United States government which are deposited in an irrevocable trust under an escrow agreement that states that all proceeds from the trust are to be used to fund principal and interest payments of the refunded debt. In accordance with the Corporation's stated purpose to promote the common good and general welfare of the City, any gains and/or losses realized as a result of a refunding issuance are not gains and/or losses of the Corporation, rather the gains and/or losses are realized by the City. Deferred inflows and outflows are due to the unamortized premium and discounts on the original bonds at the time of the refunding and the net book value difference between the original bonds and the refunding bonds. As of June 30, 2015, the City has recorded \$26 million of net deferred inflows and outflows from refundings.

k. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

I. New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 69, *Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations*, establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations. As used in this Statement, the term *government combinations* includes a variety of transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2013. The Corporation has no government combinations or disposals of government operations in fiscal year 2015 and is therefore not impacted by this Statement.

GASB Statement No. 72, *Fair Value Measurement and Application*, will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted valuation techniques. This Statement also will enhance fair value application guidance and related disclosures in order to provide information to financial statement users about the impact of fair value measurements on a government's financial position. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The Corporation will implement this Statement in fiscal year 2016.

GASB Statement No. 76, *The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments*, will improve financial reporting by (1) raising the category of GASB Implementation Guides in the GAAP hierarchy, thus providing the opportunity for broader public input on implementation guidance; (2) emphasizing the importance of analogies to authoritative literature when the accounting treatment for an event is not specified in authoritative GAAP; and (3) requiring the consideration of consistency with the GASB Concepts Statements when evaluating accounting treatments specified in nonauthoritative literature. The provisions in this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The Corporation will implement this Statement in fiscal year 2016.

2. Investments

Investments are held in the City's name. The City Charter and ordinances authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, its agencies and instrumentalities, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), highly rated obligations issued or guaranteed by any state or political subdivision thereof rated in the highest

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

short-term or second highest long-term category and investment grade corporate bonds, debentures, notes and other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a solvent U.S. corporation which are not in default as to principal or interest.

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price at which two willing parties would complete the exchange. Management intends to hold these investments until maturity. The fair value of these securities at June 30, 2015, is as follows (in thousands):

-	Credit Rating	 Fair Value	Weighted Average Maturity (years)					
U.S. Treasury Securities	N/A (1)	\$ 31,780	0.592					
Total Investments		\$ 31,780	0.592					

(1) U.S. Government Guaranteed

The distribution of the investments by bond issuance is as follows (in thousands):		
Airport Commercial Paper Notes Payable, Series 2014B-1		18,671
State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds (Civic Plaza Expansion Project), Series 2005B	i	9,566
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011		3,543
Total	\$	31,780

Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to interest rate risk is managed by matching investment maturities with anticipated expenses, and by limiting maturities as follows:

Commercial Paper	270 days final maturity
U.S. Treasury Securities	5 year final maturity
U.S. Government Agency Securities	5 year final maturity
Municipal Securities	5 years for long-term issues

Credit Risk

Investments are limited to those with the top ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations such as Standard & Poor's (S&P) and Moody's Investors Service (Moody's). The portfolio is primarily invested in securities issued by the U.S. Treasury or by U.S. Government Agency Securities which are rated Aaa by Moody's and AA+ by S&P.

Concentration of Credit Risk

There were no investments in any one issuer that represented 5% or more of total investments.

3. Sales Contracts Receivable

Under the terms of the sales contract agreements, the City agrees to pay a purchase price equal to the debt service requirements of the bonds and certificates issued by the Corporation to finance or refinance the purchases or construction of the property and equipment, plus expenses incurred by the Corporation for purposes approved by the City, less interest income earned on the Corporation's investments. Asset acquisition and construction costs are recorded as assets held for sale to the City. When construction is completed the asset is sold to the City.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

The accompanying statement of net position reflects the amounts due for completed assets as a receivable from the City. Principal and interest payments due from the City at June 30, 2015 are as follows (in thousands):

Total receivable from the City of Phoenix Less: Interest Portion	\$ 7,402,698 (2,765,583)
Sales contracts receivable	4,637,115
Less current portion	 (191,980)
Sales contracts receivable - long-term	\$ 4,445,135

The descriptions of the sales contracts that are accounted for at the entity-wide level of the Corporation follow:

Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007

The issuance of \$103,605,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007, dated June 1, 2007, refunded \$19,915,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (New City Hall), Series 2003; \$70,020,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Phoenix Municipal Courthouse), Series 1999A; \$12,865,000 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Adams Street Garage), Series 1999B; and \$1,240,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 1994. The proceeds from the issuance of \$103,605,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 2007 were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

In June 2011, \$14,599,300 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 was refunded. The proceeds from the issuance of \$47,110,000 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011C and 2011D were placed in an irrevocable trust to be applied to the principal and interest payments for 2011 and 2012. Debt service payments and other costs related to the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 which were not refunded are included in the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007.

Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A

On June 7, 2011, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the City whereby the Corporation agreed to fund or reimburse the City for the costs of acquisition of vehicles and equipment identified for lease-purchase in the current and prior fiscal years through the issuance of \$27,530,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A.

Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2011B

On June 7, 2011, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the City whereby the Corporation agreed to fund or reimburse the City for the costs of acquisition of vehicles and equipment identified for lease purchase in the current and prior fiscal years; the costs to complete the fourth and fifth floors of the ASU School of Nursing Building; and the purchase of the CityScape Parking Garage through the issuance of \$59,195,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B (Taxable).

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011C

The issuance of \$24,305,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011C, dated June 7, 2011, refunded \$420,250 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Adams Street Garage Project), Series 1999B; \$2,224,157 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000; \$3,329,013 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000; \$3,329,013 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000; \$3,329,013 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B; \$3,393,888 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003; \$3,753,144 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004; \$7,782,525 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006B; \$1,855,225 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; and \$4,282,875 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011C were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. The purpose of the refunding was to restructure existing debt payments to match forecasted future revenues.

Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2011D

The issuance of \$22,805,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011D, dated June 7, 2011, refunded \$10,250 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Adams Street Garage Project), Series 1999B; \$62,157 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds; Series 2000; \$1,044,288 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000; \$1,044,288 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B; \$1,270,163 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003; \$1,088,831 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004; \$312,325 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006B; \$3,429,275 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B; \$10,316,425 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007; and \$5,074,535 of non-Civic Improvement Corporation debt. The proceeds from the issuance of \$22,805,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007; and \$5,074,535 of non-Civic Improvement Corporation debt. The proceeds from the issuance of \$22,805,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011D (Taxable) were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. The purpose of the refunding was to restructure existing debt payments to match forecasted future revenues.

Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012

The issuance of \$15,205,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, dated June 21, 2012, refunded \$16,570,000 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (New City Hall), Series 2003. The proceeds from the issuance of \$15,205,000 of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Solid Waste Improvements), Series 2006A

On June 1, 2006, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the City under which the Corporation assisted in financing the acquisition of equipment and real property and construction of certain improvements to the City's solid waste collection and disposal system through the issuance of \$84,265,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2006C

On June 1, 2006, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the City under which the Corporation assisted in financing the acquisition of certain equipment and real property, and construction and renovation of certain improvements through the issuance of \$41,920,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006C.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A

On June 1, 2007, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the City under which the Corporation assisted in financing the construction of two new City of Phoenix Police Precincts through the issuance of \$21,115,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B

The issuance of \$71,820,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B, dated June 1, 2007, refunded \$7,775,000 of Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1997; \$19,185,000 of Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000; and \$45,610,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Solid Waste Improvements), Series 2003A. The proceeds from the issuance of \$71,820,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B, were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

In June 2009, the City of Phoenix defeased \$1,100,000 of outstanding Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B debt. Debt service payments and other costs related to the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B which were not defeased are included in the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007B.

In June 2011, \$5,284,500 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B was refunded. The proceeds from the issuance of \$47,110,000 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011C and 2011D were placed in an irrevocable trust to be applied to the principal and interest payments for 2011 and 2012. Debt service payments and other costs related to the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B which were not refunded are included in the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2007C

On June 1, 2007, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation assisted in refunding the outstanding \$34,380,000 of bonds issued by the Civic Plaza Building Corporation in 1998. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$35,670,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2007C.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2011

On June 1, 2011, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation assisted in refunding the total outstanding \$27,235,000 of Municipal Multipurpose Arena Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$27,500,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2011.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A

The issuance of \$17,510,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A, dated June 21, 2012, refunded \$13,470,000 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B and \$5,430,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004. The proceeds from the issuance of \$17,510,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2012B

The issuance of \$33,095,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2012B, dated June 21, 2012, refunded \$31,045,000 in Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003C and 2003D. The proceeds from the issuance of \$33,095,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A

The issuance of \$319,305,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A, dated May 12, 2015, refunded \$300,000,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Civic Plaza Expansion Project), Series 2005A, \$53,390,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, and \$12,905,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, and \$12,905,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, and \$12,905,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

	5	Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue
Series		2015A
Closing Date		05/12/15
Net Interest Rate		3.94%
Refunding Bonds Issued	\$	319,305
Premium		54,946
Underwriter's Discount		(1,368)
Issuance Costs and Insurance		(673)
Net Proceeds	\$	372,210
Refunded Amount	\$	366,295
Decrease in Debt Service	\$	60,322
Economic Gain	\$	52,282
Number of Years Affected		27

Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2015B

The issuance of \$60,895,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2015B, dated May 12, 2015, refunded \$34,155,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006C and \$24,020,000 of non-Civic Improvement Corporation debt. The proceeds from the issuance of \$60,895,000 of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

	S	Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue (Taxable)
Series		2015B
Closing Date		05/12/15
Net Interest Rate		3.38%
Refunding Bonds Issued	\$	60,895
Premium		_
Underwriter's Discount		(241)
Issuance Costs and Insurance		(109)
Net Proceeds	\$	60,545
Refunded Amount	\$	58,420
Decrease in Debt Service	\$	10,587
Economic Gain	\$	9,015
Number of Years Affected		21

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds (Civic Plaza Expansion Project), Series 2005B

In October 2005, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the City for the purpose of paying a portion of the costs of constructing, expanding, modifying and improving the Phoenix Civic Plaza Convention Center through the issuance of \$275,362,352 of State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds (Civic Plaza Expansion Project), Series 2005B.

Transit Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Light Rail Project), Series 2013

On July 16, 2013, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation refunded the total outstanding \$350,915,000 of Transit Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Light Rail Project), Series 2004. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$328,920,000 in Transit Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Light Rail Project), Series 2013.

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A (Non-AMT)

On June 1, 2008, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City to pay a portion of the cost of various improvements at the Airport. The purchase was financed through the issuance of \$206,840,000 in Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A.

The City agreed to purchase the improvements funded with the proceeds of the Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A pursuant to the City purchase agreement. The City's payments under the purchase agreement are to be made solely from net airport revenues or amounts available in the 2008 Bond Reserve Fund. Net airport revenues generally include all income and revenue derived from the use and operation of the City's airports (excluding passenger facility charges, federal grants and special facility revenues) and net of all expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the operation and maintenance of the airports (excluding depreciation and interest on money borrowed).

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (AMT)

On June 1, 2008, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City to pay a portion of the cost of various improvements at the Airport. The purchase was financed through the issuance of \$43,160,000 in Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B.

The City agreed to purchase the improvements funded with the proceeds of the Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B pursuant to the City purchase agreement. The City's payments under the purchase agreement are to be made solely from net airport revenues or amounts available in the 2008 Bond Reserve Fund. Net airport revenues generally include all income and revenue derived from the use and operation of the City's airports (excluding passenger facility charges, federal grants and special facility revenues) and net of all expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the operation and maintenance of the airports (excluding depreciation and interest on money borrowed).

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008C (Non-AMT)

The issuance of \$109,850,000 in Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008C, dated June 18, 2008, refunded \$6,615,000 in Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 1994; \$2,250,000 in Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1994B; and \$102,575,000 in Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A. The proceeds from the issuance of \$109,850,000 in Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008C were transferred to the respective paying agents for the bonds and interest being refunded.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008D (AMT)

The issuance of \$68,520,000 in Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008D, dated June 18, 2008, refunded \$6,945,000 in Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1994C; \$14,875,000 in Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1994D; \$31,000,000 in Subordinated Excise Tax Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 1995; and \$17,380,000 in Airport Terminal Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998. The proceeds from the issuance of \$68,520,000 in Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008D were transferred to the respective paying agents for the bonds and interest being refunded.

Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013

On March 5, 2013, the Corporation issued \$196,600,000 of Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (AMT). Proceeds of the bonds refunded \$231,390,000 of outstanding Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B (AMT). The proceeds from the issuance were transferred to the respective paying agents for the bonds and interest being refunded.

Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT)

On August 1, 2010, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City to finance a portion of the Phoenix Sky Train at Sky Harbor International Airport. Proceeds of the bonds were also used to refund \$200,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Corporation's Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2008A and 2008B. The purchase and refunding were financed through the issuance of \$642,680,000 in Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A.

Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2010B (Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds - Direct Payment)

In September 2010, the Corporation issued \$21,345,000 of Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2010B (Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds-Direct Payment). The Corporation elected to receive subsidy payments in the amount of 45% of each interest payment on the Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds, paid directly to US Bank, National Association, as trustee, from the United States Treasury. On March 1, 2013, the federal government announced the implementation of certain automatic budget cuts known as the sequester, which has resulted in a reduction of the federal subsidy payments by 7.2% for the federal government's fiscal year ending September 30, 2014. Proceeds from the bonds will fund land acquisition for noise mitigation and related capital costs for the Phoenix Sky Train.

Junior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010C (Non-AMT)

On August 1, 2010, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation refunded the total outstanding \$34,285,000 of Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A and 1998B. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$32,080,000 in Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2010C.

Rental Car Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2004

In June 2004, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City to pay a portion of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, and equipping certain facilities, infrastructure, site development, and equipment necessary for the operation of a consolidated rental car center at the Airport. The purchase was financed through the issuance of \$260,000,000 in Rental Car Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2004.

The City agreed to purchase the improvements funded with the proceeds of the Rental Car Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2004 pursuant to the City purchase agreement. The City's payments under the purchase agreement are to be made from a first priority pledge of the pledged revenues. The pledged revenues consist primarily of customer facility charges that have been collected from rental car customers from June 1, 2002 through the issuance of the 2004 Bonds and deposited to certain Trustee funds, customer facility charges collected after

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

issuance of the 2004 Bonds and transferred to the Trustee, and investment income from investments therein. The pledged revenues do not include amounts paid by the rental car center companies as ground rentals or concession fees or customer facility charges which exceed the pledged rate.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001

The issuance of \$99,980,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001, dated August 1, 2001 refunded \$87,120,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 and \$12,795,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996. The proceeds from the issuance of \$99,980,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A

On June 2, 2009, the Corporation and the City entered into an agreement under which the Corporation assisted in the financing of certain improvements of the City's water system and for the purpose of refunding the Corporation's outstanding Water System Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2007A and Series 2007B. This agreement was financed through the issuance of \$450,000,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B

The issuance of \$90,295,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B, dated June 2, 2009 fully refunded \$98,385,000 of the City's Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998. The proceeds from the issuance of \$90,295,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B were transferred to the respective paying agents for the bonds and interest being refunded.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011

On November 1, 2011, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation refunded the total outstanding \$183,930,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$167,510,000 in Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011.

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A

On December 17, 2014, the Corporation and the City entered into an agreement under which the Corporation assisted in the financing of certain improvements of the City's water system and for the purpose of refunding the Corporation's outstanding Water System Revenue Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2012A and Series 2012B. This agreement was financed through the issuance of \$152,830,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B

The issuance of \$445,085,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B, dated December 17, 2014, fully refunded \$486,370,000 of the City's Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 and \$10,540,000 of the City's Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003. The proceeds from the issuance of \$445,085,000 of Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B were transferred to the respective paying agents for the bonds and interest being refunded.

	Junior Lien /ater Revenue
Series	2014B
Closing Date	12/17/14
Net Interest Rate	2.89%
Refunding Bonds Issued	\$ 445,085
Premium	78,177
Underwriter's Discount	(1,779)
Issuance Costs and Insurance	(724)
Net Proceeds	\$ 520,759
Refunded Amount	\$ 496,910
Decrease in Debt Service	\$ 77,910
Economic Gain	\$ 73,256
Number of Years Affected	15

Senior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008

The issuance of \$133,400,000 in Senior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008, dated November 18, 2008, refunded \$130,260,000 in Senior Lien Variable Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004. The City also terminated two interest rate swap agreements with respect to the refunded variable rate wastewater bonds.

Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007

On November 1, 2007, the Corporation and the City entered into an agreement to refund \$150,000,000 of the Corporation's outstanding Wastewater System Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2006 and to pay the cost of certain improvements of the City's wastewater system through the issuance of \$300,000,000 in Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007.

Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011

On December 1, 2011, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation refunded the total outstanding \$137,060,000 of Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$118,290,000 in Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011.

Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014

On April 15, 2014, the Corporation entered into a purchase agreement with the City under which the Corporation refunded the total outstanding \$144,810,000 of Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004. The bonds were refunded through the issuance of \$127,810,000 in Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

4. Notes Receivable

On June 15, 2000, the Corporation and the City entered into a purchase agreement to purchase property and pay the cost of certain improvements to the property. The Corporation simultaneously entered into a purchase and loan agreement with Native American Connections, Inc. (NACI) for the resale of the property to NACI and to act as the lender for the purchase of and improvements to the property. In fiscal year 2010, the City renegotiated the loan agreement with the NACI, adjusting the terms of the payment agreement. As of June 30, 2015, the note amount is \$837,268, with a maturity date of January 1, 2021, and an interest rate of 3%. The loan agreement has been recorded as a note receivable in the Statement of Net Position.

The NACI makes monthly payments of \$3,361 each. Payments are applied to the accrued interest receivable balance and monthly interest until December 1, 2013. Monthly payments will then be applied to principal and interest. In addition to the monthly payments, the NACI will make regularly scheduled principal payments of \$401,287 on January 1, 2016 and \$282,923 on January 1, 2021.

5. <u>Refunded Obligations</u>

Future debt service on refunded bonds has been provided through advance refunding bond issues whereby refunding bonds are issued and the net proceeds, plus any additional resources that may be required, are used to purchase securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government. These securities are then deposited in an irrevocable trust under an escrow agreement which states that all proceeds from the trust will be used to fund the principal and interest payments of the previously issued debt being refunded. The trust deposits have been computed so that the securities in the trust, along with future cash flows generated by securities, will be sufficient to service the previously issued bonds.

Advanced refunding and defeasance arrangements at June 30, 2015 were as follows (in thousands):

Refunded and Defeased Bonds					
Date Refunded/					Assets Held in Trust (1)
05/12/15	06/13/06	Civic Improvement Corporation			
	06/27/07	Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue	\$	66,295 \$	5 71,367
05/12/15	06/13/06	Civic Improvement Corporation Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue (Taxable)	\$	34.155 \$	37.195

(1) Assets held in trust for advanced refunded bonds reflect the market value of those assets.

6. Bonds Payable

The bonds are issued by the Corporation for City approved projects. The City makes annual payments to the corporation under a purchase agreement equal to the annual debt service requirements of the bonds. The City's payments to the Corporation are guaranteed by either a pledge of excise taxes, enterprise fund revenues or project revenues. Pledged excise taxes include City sales, use, utility and franchise taxes, license and permit fees and state shared sales and income taxes. The lease-purchase payments for all outstanding Corporation bonds issued for general government purposes have been anticipated and provided for in the City's annual operating budget.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Issue	Issue Date		Original Issuance
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007	06/01/07	\$	103,605,000
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A	06/07/11	\$	27,530,000
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B (Taxable)	06/07/11	\$	59,195,000
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011C	06/07/11	\$	24,305,000
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011D (Taxable)	06/07/11	\$	22,805,000
Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012	06/21/12	\$	15,205,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Solid Waste Improvements), Series 2006A	06/01/06	\$	84,265,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Nevenue Bonds (Solid Waste improvements), Senes 2000A	00/01/00	Ψ	04,203,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2006C	06/01/06	\$	41,920,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A	06/01/07	\$	21,115,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B	06/01/07	\$	71,820,000

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Purpose	Call and Redemption Terms
To refund a portion of the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (New City Hall), Series 2003; a portion of the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Phoenix Municipal Courthouse), Series 1999A; a portion of the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Adams Street Garage), Series 1999B and a portion of Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 1994.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018 are callable on 7/1/17 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund the costs of vehicles and equipment identified as lease-purchase in the current and prior fiscal years.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2022 are callable on 7/1/2021 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time at 100% of par.
To fund the costs of vehicles and equipment identified as lease-purchase in the current and prior fiscal years; the costs to complete the fourth and fifth floors of the ASU School of Nursing Building; and the purchase of the CityScape Parking Garage.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2022 are callable on 7/1/2021 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time at 100% of par.
To partially refund the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Adams Street Garage Project), Series 1999B, the Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, the Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B, the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003. the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004, the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006B, the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007, and the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2022 are callable on 7/1/2021 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time at 100% of par.
To partially refund the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004, the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007, the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B, and Certificates of Participation issued through the Arizona Municipal Financing Program, Series 18.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2022 are callable on 7/1/2021 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time at 100% of par.
To refund a portion of the Corporation's Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2023 are callable on 7/1/22 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund the acquisition, construction, equipment, and improvement of certain real and personal property for the City's solid waste collection and disposal system.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2017 are callable on 7/1/16 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund the acquisition, construction, equipment, and improvement of certain real and personal property.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2017 are callable on 7/1/16 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund the construction of a new City of Phoenix Police Precinct.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018 are callable on 7/1/17 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1997. Also, to refund a portion of Municipal Facilities Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 and a portion of Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Solid Waste Improvements), Series 2003A.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018 are callable on 7/1/17 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Issue	Issue Date	Original Issuance
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007C (Taxable)	06/01/07	\$ 35,670,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 (Taxable)	06/07/11	\$ 27,500,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A	06/21/12	\$ 17,510,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B (Taxable)	06/21/12	\$ 33,095,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A	05/12/15	\$ 319,305,000
Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B (Taxable)	05/12/15	\$ 60,895,000
State of Arizona Distribution Revenue Bonds (Civic Plaza Expansion Project), Series 2005B	10/06/05	\$ 275,362,352
Transit Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Light Rail Project), Series 2013	07/16/13	\$ 328,920,000
Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A (Non-AMT)	06/18/08	\$ 206,840,000
Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (AMT)	06/18/08	\$ 43,160,000
Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008C (Non-AMT)	06/18/08	\$ 109,850,000
Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008D (AMT)	06/18/08	\$ 68,520,000
Senior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (AMT)	03/05/13	\$ 196,600,000

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Purpose	Call and Redemption Terms
To refund the outstanding bonds issued by the Phoenix Civic Plaza Building Corporation in 1998 to build the Civic Plaza East Garage.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018 are callable on 7/1/17 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the Municipal Multipurpose Arena Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 1998.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2022 are callable on 7/1/2021 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time at 100% of par.
To refund a portion of the Corporation's Municipal Facilities Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B and Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2023 are callable on 7/1/22 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund a portion of the Corporation's Municipal Facilities Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003C and 2003D.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2023 are callable on 7/1/22 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A (Civic Plaza Expansion Project); to partially refund the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A (Solid Waste Improvements) and Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2026 are callable on 7/1/25 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To partially refund the Subordinated Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2006C and refund the Certificates of Participation issued through the Arizona Municipal Financing Program, Series 18.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2026 are callable on 7/1/25 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund a portion of the cost of constructing, expanding, modifying and improving the Phoenix Civic Plaza Convention Center.	Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.
To refund the outstanding Transit Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Light Rail Project), Series 2004.	Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.
To fund a portion of certain improvements at the City's airports.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2019 are callable on 7/1/18 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund a portion of certain improvements at the City's airports.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2019 are callable on 7/1/18 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 1994 and a 1994 Airport general obligation bond. Refunding a portion of the Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A and 1998B.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2019 are callable on 7/1/18 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the Subordinated Excise Tax Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Airport Improvements), Series 1995 and the Airport Terminal Senior Lien Excise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998. Refunding various Airport general obligation bonds.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2019 are callable on 7/1/18 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the Senior Lien Aviation Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B (AMT).	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2024 are callable on 7/1/23 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Issue	Issue Date	Original Issuance
Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT)	09/01/10	\$ 642,680,000
Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2010B (Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds-Direct Payment)	09/01/10	\$ 21,345,000
Junior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010C (Non-AMT)	09/01/10	\$ 32,080,000
Rental Car Facility Charge Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2004	06/02/04	\$ 260,000,000
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001	08/01/01	\$ 99,980,000
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A	06/02/09	\$ 450,000,000
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B	06/02/09	\$ 90,295,000
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011	11/22/11	\$ 167,510,000
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A	12/17/14	\$ 152,830,000
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014B	12/17/14	\$ 445,085,000
Senior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008	11/18/08	\$ 133,400,000
Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007	11/27/07	\$ 300,000,000
Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011	12/22/11	\$ 118,290,000
Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014	04/15/14	\$ 127,810,000

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Purpose	Call and Redemption Terms
To fund a portion of the costs related to the Phoenix Sky Train, Phoenix Sky Train related land and other land acquisition costs. A portion of the proceeds will be applied to the payment of principal and interest on the Airport Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2008A and 2008B.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2021 (excluding the bond maturing on July 1, 2034), are callable on July 1, 2020 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par. The bond maturing on July 1, 2034 is callable on July 1, 2015 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund land acquisition for noise mitigation and related capital costs for the Phoenix Sky Train.	The bonds are subject to redemption prior to their maturity date of July 1, 2040 in whole or in part at the make-whole premium.
To refund a portion of the Senior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A and 1998B.	Bonds are callable on July 1, 2020 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To fund the majority of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing and equipping certain facilities, infrastructures, site development, and equipment necessary for the operation of a consolidated rental car center at the Airport.	Bonds are callable in whole or in part at any time prior to maturity at 100% of par plus the make-whole premium, if any.
To refund a portion of the outstanding Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 and a portion of the outstanding Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.	Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to stated maturity.
To refund the outstanding Water System Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2007A and 2007B and to fund the cost of certain improvements of the City's water system.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2020 are callable on 7/1/19 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998.	Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.
To refund the outstanding Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002.	Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2022 are callable on 7/1/2021 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Water System Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2012A and 2012B.	Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2025 are callable on 7/1/2024 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 and refund the Junior Lien Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2005.	Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2025 are callable on 7/1/2024 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Senior Lien Wastewater System Variable Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2019 are callable on 7/1/18 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Wastewater System Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2006 and to fund the cost of certain improvements of the City's wastewater system.	Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2018 are callable on 7/1/17 and thereafter, in whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001.	Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2023 are callable on 7/1/2022 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.
To refund the outstanding Junior Lien Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004.	Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2025 are callable on July 1, 2024 and thereafter, in whole or in part at any time, at 100% of par.

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ending June 30		Principal		Interest	Total
Senior Lien Excise Ta	ax Reven	ue Refunding Bon	ds, Seri	es 2007	
2016	\$	3,555,000	\$	4,278,175	\$ 7,833,175
2017		3,735,000		4,100,425	7,835,425
2018		5,840,000		3,913,675	9,753,675
2019		6,135,000		3,621,675	9,756,675
2020		6,435,000		3,314,925	9,749,92
2021 - 2025		34,840,000		11,703,413	46,543,41
2026 - 2029		27,445,000		3,125,025	30,570,02
Total	\$	87,985,000	\$	34,057,313	\$ 122,042,313
Coupon rates				4.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			_	4.51%	
Senior Lien Excise Ta	ax Reven	ue Bonds, Series 2	2011A		
2016	\$	2,730,000	\$	946,928	\$ 3,676,92
2017		3,915,000		837,727	4,752,72
2018		4,035,000		641,978	4,676,97
2019		2,830,000		440,227	3,270,22
2020		2,945,000		327,028	3,272,02
2021 - 2025		1,815,000		781,307	2,596,30
2026 - 2030		2,195,000		401,995	2,596,99
2031		495,000		22,275	517,27
Total	\$	20,960,000	\$	4,399,465	\$ 25,359,46
Coupon rates				2.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate				2.86%	
Senior Lien Excise Ta	ax Reven	ue Bonds, Series 2	2011B (1	Faxable)	
2016	\$	3,830,000	\$	2,525,385	\$ 6,355,38
2017		3,960,000		2,420,903	6,380,90
2018		4,185,000		2,290,143	6,475,14
2019		4,350,000		2,141,492	6,491,49
2020		4,540,000		1,971,538	6,511,53
2021 - 2025		11,130,000		7,711,431	18,841,43
2026 - 2030		9,210,000		5,469,031	14,679,03
2031 - 2035		11,600,000		2,738,980	14,338,98
2036		2,695,000		149,977	 2,844,97
Total	\$	55,500,000	\$	27,418,880	\$ 82,918,880
Coupon rates				2.328 - 5.007%	

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year						
Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
Senior Lien Excise Ta	ıx Reveni	ue Refunding Bon	nds, Se	eries 2011C		
2016	\$	_	\$	1,200,406	\$	1,200,406
2017		_		1,200,406		1,200,406
2018		_		1,200,407		1,200,407
2019		_		1,200,406		1,200,406
2020		_		1,200,406		1,200,406
2021 - 2025		20,060,000		3,818,282		23,878,282
2026 - 2028		4,245,000		313,800		4,558,800
Total	\$	24,305,000	\$	10,134,113	\$	34,439,113
Coupon rates			_	4.125 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			_	3.79%		
			=			
Senior Lien Excise Ta	ıx Reven	ue Refunding Bon	nds, Se	eries 2011D (Taxable)	
2016	\$	1,775,000	\$	817,826	\$	2,592,826
2017		3,795,000		769,404		4,564,404
2018		4,080,000		644,093		4,724,093
2019		5,610,000		499,172		6,109,172
2020		4,480,000		279,989		4,759,989
2021		2,255,000		95,995		2,350,995
Total	\$	21,995,000	\$	3,106,479	\$	25,101,479
Coupon rates				2.328 - 4.257%		
Effective interest rate			-	3.91%		
			=			
Senior Lien Excise Ta	ıx Reven	ue Refunding Bon	nds, Se	eries 2012		
2016	\$	1,770,000	\$	557,425	\$	2,327,425
2017		1,845,000		486,625		2,331,625
2018		_		412,825		412,825
2019		_		412,825		412,825
2020		_		412,825		412,825
2021 - 2025		2,205,000		1,843,625		4,048,625
2026 - 2029		6,295,000		802,050		7,097,050
Total	\$	12,115,000	\$	4,928,200	\$	17,043,200
Coupon rates				3.00 - 5.00%		
-			=			
Effective interest rate			=	2.97%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest	Total
Subordinated Excise	I dx Reve	enue Bonus (Sono	i wasi	e improvements), 36	0A
2016	\$	3,930,000	\$	157,200	\$ 4,087,200
Total	\$	3,930,000	\$	157,200	\$ 4,087,200
Coupon rates				4.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			-	4.45%	
Subordinated Excise	Tax Reve	enue Bonds, Taxa	ble Se	ries 2006C	
2016	\$	1,205,000	\$	67,480	\$ 1,272,480
Total	\$	1,205,000	\$	67,480	\$ 1,272,480
Coupon rates			=	5.50 - 6.50%	
Effective interest rate			_	6.10%	
Subordinated Excise	Tax Reve	enue Bonds, Serie	es 200	7A	
2016	\$	950,000	\$	82,450	\$ 1,032,450
2017		990,000		42,075	1,032,075
Total	\$	1,940,000	\$	124,525	\$ 2,064,525
Coupon rates				4.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			_	4.46%	
Subordinated Excise	Tax Reve	enue Refunding B	- onds,	Series 2007B	
2016	\$	7,140,000	\$	2,437,200	\$ 9,577,200
2017		5,810,000		2,088,450	7,898,450
2018		5,930,000		1,805,450	7,735,450
2019		6,225,000		1,508,950	7,733,950
2020		6,545,000		1,197,700	7,742,700
2021 - 2023		17,715,000		1,743,350	19,458,350
Total	\$	49,365,000	\$	10,781,100	\$ 60,146,100
Coupon rates			=	3.75 - 4.50%	
Effective interest rate			=	4.33%	

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
Subordinated Excise	Tax Reve		onds, S		ole)	
2016	\$	2 480 000	\$	1 178 660	\$	3 658 660
2018	φ	2,480,000	φ	1,178,669	φ	3,658,669
		2,615,000		1,039,442		3,654,442
2018		2,765,000		892,112		3,657,112
2019		2,925,000		733,125		3,658,125
2020		3,095,000		564,938		3,659,938
2021 - 2022 Tatal	<u> </u>	6,730,000	<u> </u>	585,637	<u> </u>	7,315,637
Total	\$	20,610,000	\$	4,993,923	\$	25,603,923
Coupon rates			_	5.44 - 5.63%		
Effective interest rate			_	5.81%		
Subordinated Excise	Tax Reve	enue Refunding B	onds, S	eries 2011 (Taxable	e)	
2016	\$	3,770,000	\$	612,848	\$	4,382,848
2017		3,900,000		491,153		4,391,153
2018		4,040,000		346,775		4,386,775
2019		4,200,000		185,094		4,385,094
Total	\$	15,910,000	\$	1,635,870	\$	17,545,870
Coupon rates				1.416 - 4.407%		
Effective interest rate			_	3.71%		
Subordinated Excise	Tax Reve	enue Refunding B	onds, S	eries 2012A		
2016	\$	2,745,000	\$	638,600	\$	3,383,600
2017		1,450,000		528,800		1,978,800
2018		1,505,000		470,800		1,975,800
2019		1,570,000		410,600		1,980,600
2020		1,175,000		332,100		1,507,100
2021 - 2025		5,555,000		716,500		6,271,500
Total	\$	14,000,000	\$	3,097,400	\$	17,097,400
Coupon rates			_	3.00 - 5.00%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
Subordinated Excise	Tax Rev	enue Refunding B	onds, S	Series 2012B (Taxab	ole)	
2016	\$	850,000	\$	1,217,424	\$	2,067,424
2017		1,425,000		1,201,835		2,626,835
2018		1,455,000		1,172,138		2,627,138
2019		1,495,000		1,137,975		2,632,975
2020		1,535,000		1,098,387		2,633,387
2021 - 2025		8,405,000		4,739,099		13,144,099
2026 - 2030		10,270,000		3,028,248		13,298,248
2031 - 2033		7,660,000		682,827		8,342,827
Total	\$	33,095,000	\$	14,277,933	\$	47,372,933
Coupon rates			_	1.83 - 3.71%		
Effective interest rate			_	4.01%		
Subordinated Excise	Tax Rev	enue Refunding B	onds, S	Series 2015A		
2016	\$	_	\$	17,894,204	\$	17,894,204
2017	Ŧ	5,635,000	Ŧ	15,750,400	Ŧ	21,385,400
2018		6,960,000		15,525,000		22,485,000
2019		7,255,000		15,246,600		22,501,600
2020		7,645,000		14,883,850		22,528,850
2021 - 2025		51,740,000		68,474,250		120,214,250
2026 - 2030		63,660,000		52,811,150		116,471,150
2031 - 2035		68,615,000		37,575,750		106,190,750
2036 - 2040		87,570,000		18,618,500		106,188,500
2041		20,225,000		1,011,250		21,236,250
Total	\$	319,305,000	\$	257,790,954	\$	577,095,954
Coupon rates			_	3.00 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			_	3.56%		
Subordinated Excise	Tax Rev	enue Refunding B	onds, S	Series 2015B (Taxat	ole)	
2016	\$	1,555,000	\$	1,970,568	\$	3,525,568
2017		2,780,000		1,728,110		4,508,110
2018		2,805,000		1,701,033		4,506,033
2019		2,835,000		1,661,594		4,496,594
2020		4,575,000		1,611,103		6,186,103
2021 - 2025		21,375,000		6,365,137		27,740,137
2026 - 2030		11,345,000		3,959,643		15,304,643
2031 - 2035		13,625,000		1,674,644		15,299,644
Total	\$	60,895,000	\$	20,671,833	\$	81,566,833
Coupon rates			_	0.41 - 3.992%		
Effective interest rate				3.35%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
State of Arizona Distrib	oution I	Revenue Bonds (C	ivic Pl	aza Expansion Proje	ect), Ser	ies 2005B
2016	\$	_	\$	20,449,000	\$	20,449,000
2017		_		20,449,000		20,449,000
2018		2,050,000		20,449,000		22,499,000
2019		2,660,000		20,336,250		22,996,250
2020		3,310,000		20,189,950		23,499,950
2021 - 2025		27,555,000		97,438,000		124,993,000
2026 - 2030		49,960,000		87,527,825		137,487,825
2031 - 2035		77,720,000		70,766,300		148,486,300
2036 - 2040		103,400,000		46,583,625		149,983,625
2041 - 2044		105,145,000		14,844,225		119,989,225
Total	\$	371,800,000	\$	419,033,175	\$	790,833,175
Coupon rates			=	3.85 - 5.50%		
Effective interest rate			=	4.72%		
Transit Excise Tax Rev	enue R	Refunding Bonds (I	Light F	Rail Project), Series	2013	
2016	\$	37,145,000	\$	12,806,700	\$	49,951,700
2017		49,865,000	·	11,070,900		60,935,900
2018		55,205,000		8,774,950		63,979,950
2019		61,060,000		6,116,750		67,176,750
2020		67,275,000		3,263,750		70,538,750
Total	\$	270,550,000	\$	42,033,050	\$	312,583,050
Coupon rates				2.00 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			=	2.01%		
Senior Lien Airport Re	venue l	Bonds, Series 2008	BA (No	on-AMT)		
2016	\$	_	\$	10,339,550	\$	10,339,550
2017		_		10,339,550		10,339,550
2018		_		10,339,550		10,339,550
2019		_		10,339,550		10,339,550
2020		6,775,000		10,339,550		17,114,550
2021 - 2025		39,300,000		46,265,750		85,565,750
2026 - 2030		50,155,000		35,412,150		85,567,150
2031 - 2035		64,005,000		21,564,000		85,569,000
2036 - 2038		46,605,000		4,736,250		51,341,250
Total	\$	206,840,000	\$	159,675,900	\$	366,515,900
Coupon rates			_	4.80 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			=	5.02%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
Linding June 30		Fillcipal		Interest		Total
Senior Lien Airport R	evenue E	Bonds, Series 2008	3B (AM1	Γ)		
2016	\$	5,490,000	\$	1,246,613	\$	6,736,613
2017		5,775,000		958,387		6,733,38
2018		6,080,000		655,200		6,735,20
2019		6,400,000		336,000		6,736,00
Total	\$	23,745,000	\$	3,196,200	\$	26,941,20
Coupon rates				5.00 - 5.25%		
Effective interest rate				4.68%		
Senior Lien Airport R	evenue F	Refunding Bonds	Series :	2008C (Non-AMT)		
	evenue i	terunung Donus,	Oenes /			
2016	\$	7,615,000	\$	2,888,050	\$	10,503,05
2017		7,970,000		2,527,900		10,497,90
2018		8,370,000		2,129,400		10,499,40
2019		8,720,000		1,773,675		10,493,67
2020		9,095,000		1,403,075		10,498,07
2021 - 2022		19,575,000		1,422,900		20,997,90
Total	\$	61,345,000	\$	12,145,000	\$	73,490,00
Coupon rates				3.00 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			_	4.26%		
Senior Lien Airport R	evenue F	Refunding Bonds,	Series 2	2008D (AMT)		
2016	\$	3,815,000	\$	1,132,213	\$	4,947,21
2017	·	4,050,000	ŗ	931,925	·	4,981,92
2018		4,310,000		719,300		5,029,30
2019		4,610,000		493,025		5,103,02
2020		5,020,000		251,000		5,271,00
Total	\$	21,805,000	\$	3,527,463	\$	25,332,46
Coupon rates				4.00 - 5.50%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest	Total
Senior Lien Airport Re	evenue	Refunding Bonds,	Series	2013 (AMT)	
2016	\$	7,090,000	\$	9,158,500	\$ 16,248,500
2017		7,440,000		8,804,000	16,244,000
2018		7,815,000		8,432,000	16,247,000
2019		8,205,000		8,041,250	16,246,250
2020		8,615,000		7,631,000	16,246,000
2021 - 2025		49,990,000		31,245,500	81,235,500
2026 - 2030		63,805,000		17,433,750	81,238,750
2031 - 2032		30,210,000		2,284,250	32,494,250
Total	\$	183,170,000	\$	93,030,250	\$ 276,200,250
Coupon rates			=	3.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			_	3.28%	
Junior Lien Airport Re	venue	Bonds, Series 2010)A (No	n-AMT)	
2016	\$	13,310,000	\$	30,147,381	\$ 43,457,381
2017		13,960,000		29,497,831	43,457,831
2018		14,655,000		28,804,081	43,459,081
2019		15,285,000		28,174,031	43,459,031
2020		16,025,000		27,430,982	43,455,982
2021 - 2025		92,725,000		124,556,281	217,281,281
2026 - 2030		118,045,000		99,237,563	217,282,563
2031 - 2035		150,710,000		66,592,838	217,302,838
2036 - 2040		171,445,000		24,522,000	195,967,000
Total	\$	606,160,000	\$	458,962,988	\$ 1,065,122,988
Coupon rates			=	2.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			=	4.69%	

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
Junior Lien Airport Re Development Bonds-I	evenue B Direct Pa	onds, Taxable Se yment)	ries 20	10B (Recovery Zon	e Econo	mic
2016	\$	_	\$	1,408,770	\$	1,408,770
2017		_		1,408,770		1,408,770
2018		_		1,408,770		1,408,770
2019		_		1,408,770		1,408,770
2020		_		1,408,770		1,408,770
2021 - 2025		_		7,043,850		7,043,850
2026 - 2030		_		7,043,850		7,043,850
2031 - 2035		_		7,043,850		7,043,850
2036 - 2040		21,345,000		7,043,850		28,388,850
Total	\$	21,345,000	\$	35,219,250	\$	56,564,250
Coupon rates			_	6.60%		
Effective interest rate			_	3.67%		
Junior Lien Airport Re	evenue R	Refunding Bonds,	Series	2010C (Non-AMT)		
2016	\$	_	\$	1,604,000	\$	1,604,000
2017		_		1,604,000		1,604,000
2018		_		1,604,000		1,604,000
2019		_		1,604,000		1,604,000
2020		_		1,604,000		1,604,000
2021 - 2025		32,080,000		6,468,250		38,548,250
Total	\$	32,080,000	\$	14,488,250	\$	46,568,250
Coupon rates				5.00%		
Effective interest rate			_	4.33%		
Rental Car Facility Ch	arge Rev	venue Bonds, Taxa	able S	eries 2004		
2016	\$	9,255,000	\$	12,021,661	\$	21,276,661
2017		9,795,000		11,478,392		21,273,392
2018		10,370,000		10,903,425		21,273,425
2019		10,990,000		10,284,337		21,274,337
2020		11,645,000		9,628,233		21,273,233
2021 - 2025		69,945,000		36,433,284		106,378,284
2026 - 2029		73,305,000		11,800,625		85,105,625
Total	\$	195,305,000	\$	102,549,957	\$	297,854,957
Coupon rates			=	3.69 - 6.25%		
Effective interest rate				6.20%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total
Junior Lien Water Sys	stem Rev	venue Refunding E	Bonds, S	Series 2001		
2016	\$	4,670,000	\$	2,803,413	\$	7,473,413
2017		4,915,000		2,558,237		7,473,237
2018		5,175,000		2,300,200		7,475,200
2019		5,445,000		2,028,513		7,473,513
2020		5,730,000		1,742,650		7,472,650
2021 - 2024		26,215,000		3,701,225		29,916,225
Total	\$	52,150,000	\$	15,134,238	\$	67,284,238
Coupon rates			_	4.00 - 5.50%		
Effective interest rate			_	4.68%		
Junior Lien Water Sys	stem Rev	venue Bonds, Seri	es 2009	Α		
2016	\$	_	\$	21,475,100	\$	21,475,100
2017		10,415,000		21,475,100		31,890,100
2018		10,935,000		20,954,350		31,889,350
2019		11,480,000		20,407,600		31,887,600
2020		12,055,000		19,833,600		31,888,600
2021 - 2025		69,895,000		89,545,550		159,440,550
2026 - 2030		89,110,000		70,333,438		159,443,438
2031 - 2035		113,645,000		45,793,437		159,438,437
2036 - 2039		113,105,000		14,447,175		127,552,175
Total	\$	430,640,000	\$	324,265,350	\$	754,905,350
Coupon rates			_	3.50 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			_	4.63%		
Junior Lien Water Sys	stem Rev	venue Refunding E	Bonds, S	Series 2009B		
2016	\$	9,945,000	\$	1,940,438	\$	11,885,438
2017	·	10,365,000	·	1,525,487	,	11,890,487
2018		10,865,000		1,024,625		11,889,625
2019		11,370,000		517,125		11,887,125
Total	\$	42,545,000	\$	5,007,675	\$	47,552,675
Coupon rates			_	2.75 - 5.00%		
Effective interest rate			_	2.78%		

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ending June 30		Principal		Interest		Total			
Junior Lien Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011									
2016	\$	10,685,000	\$	7,193,875	\$	17,878,875			
2017		11,215,000		6,659,625		17,874,625			
2018		11,775,000		6,098,875		17,873,875			
2019		12,285,000		5,595,250		17,880,250			
2020		12,820,000		5,062,200		17,882,200			
2021 - 2025		73,780,000		15,616,800		89,396,800			
2026		17,035,000		844,700		17,879,700			
Total	\$	149,595,000	\$	47,071,325	\$	196,666,325			
Coupon rates			=	2.00 - 5.00%					
Effective interest rate			=	3.12%					
Junior Lien Water Sys	tem Rev	venue Bonds, Seri	es 201	I4A					
2016	\$	_	\$	7,317,400	\$	7,317,400			
2017		_	·	7,317,400	·	7,317,400			
2018		_		7,317,400		7,317,400			
2019		3,170,000		7,317,400		10,487,400			
2020		3,235,000		7,254,000		10,489,000			
2021 - 2025		18,260,000		34,177,700		52,437,700			
2026 - 2030		23,265,000		29,173,500		52,438,500			
2031 - 2035		29,680,000		22,757,750		52,437,750			
2036 - 2040		37,815,000		14,618,200		52,433,200			
2041 - 2044		37,405,000		4,544,800		41,949,800			
Total	\$	152,830,000	\$	141,795,550	\$	294,625,550			
Coupon rates			=	2.00 - 5.00%					
Effective interest rate			=	3.76%					
Junior Lien Water Sys	stem Rev	venue Refunding E	Bonds	, Series 2014B					
2016	\$	8,830,000	\$	21,219,550	\$	30,049,550			
2017		9,485,000		20,778,050		30,263,050			
2018		12,770,000		20,303,800		33,073,800			
2019		13,405,000		19,665,300		33,070,300			
2020		33,205,000		18,995,050		52,200,050			
2021 - 2025		186,360,000		68,652,000		255,012,000			
2026 - 2029		181,030,000		19,700,950		200,730,950			
Total	\$	445,085,000	\$	189,314,700	\$	634,399,700			
Coupon rates			=	3.00 - 5.00%					
Effective interest rate			=	2.64%					

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year					
Ending June 30		Principal		Interest	Total
Senior Lien Wastewat	ter Syste	em Revenue Refun	ding E	Sonds, Series 2008	
2016	\$	14,390,000	\$	7,337,000	\$ 21,727,000
2017		15,140,000		6,545,550	21,685,550
2018		11,145,000		5,712,850	16,857,850
2019		11,715,000		5,099,875	16,814,875
2020		12,325,000		4,455,550	16,780,550
2021 - 2024		68,685,000		10,346,600	79,031,600
Total	\$	133,400,000	\$	39,497,425	\$ 172,897,425
Coupon rates			_	5.50%	
Effective interest rate			=	5.02%	
Junior Lien Wastewat	er Syste	m Revenue Bonds	s, Serie	es 2007	
2016	\$	6,760,000	\$	13,772,338	\$ 20,532,338
2017		7,135,000		13,434,337	20,569,337
2018		7,525,000		13,113,088	20,638,088
2019		7,940,000		12,736,837	20,676,837
2020		8,375,000		12,339,838	20,714,838
2021 - 2025		49,315,000		54,948,800	104,263,800
2026 - 2030		64,460,000		41,203,750	105,663,750
2031 - 2035		84,245,000		23,222,250	107,467,250
2036 - 2037		40,540,000		3,067,500	43,607,500
Total	\$	276,295,000	\$	187,838,738	\$ 464,133,738
Coupon rates			=	4.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			=	4.65%	
Junior Lien Wastewat	er Syste	m Revenue Refun	ding E	onds, Series 2011	
2016	\$	7,990,000	\$	5,216,850	\$ 13,206,850
2017		8,340,000		4,867,350	13,207,350
2018		13,460,000		4,510,350	17,970,350
2019		14,040,000		3,927,350	17,967,350
2020		14,685,000		3,285,350	17,970,350
2021 - 2024		53,390,000		6,114,450	59,504,450
Total	\$	111,905,000	\$	27,921,700	\$ 139,826,700
Coupon rates			=	2.00 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			_	2.58%	

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Fiscal Year					
Ending June 30		Principal		Interest	 Total
Junior Lien Wastewate	er Syste	em Revenue Refund	ling Bo	onds, Series 2014	
2016	\$	6,705,000	\$	5,935,600	\$ 12,640,600
2017		6,975,000		5,667,400	12,642,400
2018		7,255,000		5,388,400	12,643,400
2019		7,620,000		5,025,650	12,645,650
2020		7,830,000		4,810,850	12,640,850
2021 - 2025		45,155,000		18,062,850	63,217,850
2026 - 2029		44,830,000		5,740,500	50,570,500
Total	\$	126,370,000	\$	50,631,250	\$ 177,001,250
Coupon rates			=	1.75 - 5.00%	
Effective interest rate			_	3.00%	
Total Bonds Payable					
2016	\$	191,980,000	\$	233,996,790	\$ 425,976,790
2017		224,695,000		222,584,945	447,279,945
2018		243,360,000		211,960,043	455,320,043
2019		261,830,000		200,428,273	462,258,273
2020		280,990,000		188,124,187	469,114,187
2021 - 2025		1,106,050,000		760,617,818	1,866,667,818
2026 - 2030		909,665,000		495,363,542	1,405,028,542
2031 - 2035		652,210,000		302,719,149	954,929,149
2036 - 2040		624,520,000		133,787,077	758,307,077
2041 - 2045		162,775,000		20,400,275	183,175,275
Total	\$	4,658,075,000	\$	2,769,982,099	\$ 7,428,057,099

Changes in long-term debt during fiscal year 2014-15 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Bonds Payable, July 1	4,765,785
Additions	978,115
Reductions	(1,085,825)
Bonds Payable, June 30	4,658,075
Amounts Due Within One Year	191,980

7. Commercial Paper Notes Payable

The City entered into purchase agreements with the Corporation for the acquisition and construction of improvements to the airport and water systems of the City. The Corporation is currently authorized to issue up to an aggregate principal amount of \$100,000,000 of its Airport Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2014ABC-1 (the "Airport CP, Series 2014ABC-1"), and an aggregate principal amount of \$100,000,000 of its Airport Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series Airport Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2014ABC-2 (the "Airport CP, Series 2014ABC-2").

(A Component Unit of the City of Phoenix, Arizona)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

On October 1, 2014, the Corporation issued \$60,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014A-1 and \$60,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014A-2 replacing the \$120,000,000 outstanding under the irrevocable, direct pay letters of credit ("LOC") for the Airport Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2011A and 2011B, as the LOC expired October 4, 2014. The Corporation issued \$40,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014B-1 on June 23, 2015, and paid \$20,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014A-1 on June 15, 2015. The remaining outstanding balances at June 30, 2015 are \$40,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014A-1, \$60,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014A-2, and \$40,000,000 of Airport CP, Series 2014B-1. The commercial paper is issued in varying maturities up to 270 days. Interest rates paid on the commercial paper range from 0.06% through 0.11%. The commercial paper is secured by LOCs issued by Bank of America, N.A. and Barclays Bank PLC (the "Banks") for Airport CP, Series 2014ABC-1 and Airport CP, Series 2014ABC-2, respectively. While the City has not granted any lien on the airport to the owners of the commercial paper, under the purchase agreement, the City has granted the Banks liens of the respective junior subordinate lien revenues to secure its obligation to satisfy the Corporation's payment obligations under the reimbursement agreements.

On December 17, 2014, the remaining \$100,000,000 of outstanding Water Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2012A (the "Water CP, Series 2012A") and the remaining \$75,000,000 of outstanding Water Commercial Paper Program Notes, Series 2012B (the "Water CP, Series 2012B") were paid by the City of Phoenix. The commercial paper was issued in varying maturities up to 270 days. Interest rates paid on the commercial paper ranged from 0.06% through 0.13%. The commercial paper was secured by irrevocable, direct pay letters of credit ("LOC") issued by RBC Capital Markets and Wells Fargo Securities (the "Banks") for Water CP, Series 2012A, and Water CP, Series 2012B, respectively. The LOC was terminated December 17, 2014. While the City has not granted any lien on the water system to the owners of the commercial paper, under the purchase agreement, the City has granted the Banks liens of the respective junior subordinate lien revenues to secure its obligation to satisfy the Corporation's payment obligations under the reimbursement agreements.

Changes in commercial paper notes payable (in thousands):

160,000
315,000)
140,000

8. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2015, the Corporation has outstanding construction commitments related to the various bond issues. The commitments have not been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. Only the currently payable portion of the contracts have been included in accounts payable in the accompanying financial statements.

9. <u>Subsequent Events</u>

On November 17, 2015, the City of Phoenix Civic Improvement Corporation issued \$95,785,000 of Junior Lien Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A (Non-AMT) and \$18,655,000 of Junior Lien Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B (Non-AMT). The bonds were issued at an all-in true interest cost of 3.99% and 4.08% respectively, and were dated and delivered December 15, 2015.

The Board has a vacancy for the position of President due to the passing of Wallace Estfan in November 2015. A search for a suitable replacement is currently underway.